
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor McRae, Convener; Councillor Bouse, Vice-Convener; and Councillors 

Alphonse, Boulton, Clark, Cooke, Copland, Farquhar, Lawrence, Macdonald, Radley, 
Tissera and Thomson. 

 

 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 13 September 2023 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE are 
requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on THURSDAY, 21 SEPTEMBER 
2023 at 10.00 am. This is a hybrid meeting and Members may also attend remotely.  

 
The meeting will be webcast and a live stream can be viewed on the Council's website. 

https://aberdeen.public-i.tv/core/portal/home  
 

  

 
JENNI LAWSON 

INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER – GOVERNANCE (LEGAL) 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

 MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL LETTERS OF REPRESENTATION ARE 
NOW AVAILABLE TO VIEW ONLINE.  PLEASE CLICK ON THE LINK WITHIN 
THE RELEVANT COMMITTEE ITEM. 

 

 MOTION AGAINST OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 

 1.1. Motion Against Officer Recommendation - Procedural Note  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 DETERMINATION OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 

 2.1. Determination of Urgent Business   
 

 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS AND TRANSPARENCY STATEMENTS 

 

Public Document Pack

https://aberdeen.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
 
 

 3.1. Members are requested to intimate any declarations of interest or 
connections   
 

 REFERRALS FROM COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND SUB COMMITTEES 

 

 4.1. Referral from Full Council - Energy Transition Zone  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

  Members please note that Planning Development Management 
Committee are only considering point (9) of the approved motion, 

contained in the minute extract from Full Council.   

 

 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 5.1. Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 
24 August 2023 - for approval  (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

 COMMITTEE PLANNER 

 

 6.1. Committee Planner  (Pages 25 - 28) 
 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 

 7.1. Detailed Planning Permission for the erection of student accommodation 
(circa 383 beds) with associated infrastructure and landscaping - 92-126 Jon 
Street Aberdeen  (Pages 29 - 46) 
 

  Planning Reference – 230514 
 

All documents associated with this application can be found at the following 
link and enter the refence number above:- 
 

Link. 
  

Planning Officer:  Gavin Clark  
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 

 8.1. Date of Next Meeting - Thursday 2 November 2023   
 

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/


 
 
 

 

 
EHRIAs related to reports on this agenda can be viewed here 

 

To access the Service Updates for this Committee please click here 
 

 
Website Address: aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey 
McBain, Committee Officer, on 01224 067344 or email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk  

 

https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/people-and-communities/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-human-rights-impact-assessments
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Members will recall from the planning training sessions held, that there is a statutory 

requirement through Sections 25 and 37 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 

Act 1997 for all planning applications to be determined in accordance with the 

provisions of the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

All Committee reports to Planning Development Management Committee are 

evaluated on this basis. It is important that the reasons for approval or refusal of all 

applications and any conditions to be attached are clear and based on valid planning 

grounds. This will ensure that applications are defensible at appeal and the Council is 

not exposed to an award of expenses. 

 

Under Standing Order 29.11 the Convener can determine whether a motion or 

amendment is competent and may seek advice from officers in this regard. With the 

foregoing in mind the Convener has agreed to the formalisation of a procedure 

whereby any Member wishing to move against the officer recommendation on an 

application in a Committee report will be required to state clearly the relevant 

development plan policy(ies) and/or other material planning consideration(s) that form 

the basis of the motion against the recommendation and also explain why it is believed 

the application should be approved or refused on that basis. The Convener will usually 

call a short recess for discussion between officers and Members putting forward an 

alternative to the recommendation. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1.1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

DRAFT/ 
 

COUNCIL 
 

11 SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

 

The Council had before it a report by the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord which 
provided an update on the planning status of sites under Council ownership at 

Aberdeen South Harbour. The report presented options to collaboratively develop 
three strategic sites within a strategic partnership with Energy Transition Zone Ltd 
(ETZ Ltd) and Port of Aberdeen (PoA), owned and operated by Aberdeen Harbour 

Board (AHB) to drive a transition towards renewable energy technologies and 
sustainable practices. 

 
The report recommended:- 

that the Council - 

(a) note that the Aberdeen Local Development Plan had now been approved and 
had designated sites at St Fittick’s, Gregness and Doonies for development as 

part of the Energy Transition Zone (ETZ). The three strategic sites made up 
around 10% of the total ETZ area; 

(b) note that Gregness OP62 and part of St Fittick’s OP62 was under the ownership 

of Aberdeen City Council but leased to the Aberdeen Harbour Board who had 
an option to purchase this land; 

(c) approve that St Fittick’s OP56 and Doonies OP61 be made available to support 
future investment and development in the ETZ, whilst also improving local 
amenity; 

(d) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord that the St Fittick’s OP56 and 
Doonies OP61 sites were only to be made available for lease and must remain 

in Council ownership and that, furthermore, any such lease agreement was only 
to be entered into at the point where financial close was reached on a particular 
development; 

(e) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to enter formal dialogue with ETZ 
Ltd and PoA to discuss the optimum partnership arrangements to take forward 

the future development of the sites and ensure the delivery of the outcomes 
identified by ETZ Ltd in their masterplan and in Aberdeen’s Regional Economic 
Strategy; 

(f) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord, following consultation with the 
Chief Officer – Finance and Chief Officer - Governance, to consider as part of 

such potential partnership arrangements how returns from the sites could be 
re-invested in both the further development of the ETZ and in the local 
community; and 

(g) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to report the outcome of these 
discussions to the meeting of the Finance and Resources Committee in 

December 2023. 
 
Councillor Allard moved, seconded by Councillor Greig:- 

 That the Council -  
(1) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord, in Aberdeen City Council’s 

capacity as land owner, that St Fittick’s OP56 and Doonies OP61 sites 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.1



 

were only to be made available for lease and must remain in Council 
ownership and that, furthermore, any such lease agreement was only to 

be entered into at the point where an end user was agreed by Aberdeen 
City Council and financial close was reached; 

(2) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to enter formal dialogue 
with ETZ Ltd and PoA to discuss the optimum partnership arrangements 
to take forward the future development of the sites and ensure the delivery 

of the outcomes identified by ETZ Ltd in their masterplan and in the North 
East Regional Economic Strategy and in line with Best Value principles; 

(3) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord, following consultation with 
the Chief Officer - Finance and Chief Officer - Governance, to consider as 
part of such potential partnership arrangements how a proportion of the 

lease income from the sites could be used for the benefit of the local 
community; 

(4) agree that approval of any leases was contingent on Council approval of 
the community benefit package, which was to progress, so far as was 
practical, parallel with the granting of leases; 

(5) note that in a recent briefing to elected members of Aberdeen City Council, 
the Chief Executive of ETZ Ltd wrote: “…we are in advanced discussions 

with a number of inward investors focused on cable manufacturing, 
moorings and anchorings, seeking to locate on the site (subject to 
planning) for these very reasons.”; 

(6) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to engage with PoA, ETZ 
Ltd, and any other interested party, as to any proposals they had to 

develop the site, including full details of the development, the rationale for 
the location of their business and any mitigations proposed to minimise 
the impact on local residents; 

(7) note community amenity and wellbeing were key considerations for 
Aberdeen City Council as the landowner; and instruct the Chief Officer - 

Corporate Landlord that individual lease agreements must include details 
of the community impact remediation steps that would be implemented at 
the termination of the lease; 

(8) instruct the Chief Officer - Early Intervention and Community 
Empowerment and Chief Officer - Commercial and Procurement to report 

through a service update on how the local community may participate in 
any decision-making process for the disbursement of funds that may be 
identified for the benefit of communities; 

(9) recommend to the Planning Development Management Committee 
that any future reports of the ETZ Masterplan be reported to the 

earliest appropriate meeting of Full Council;  and 

(10) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to report the outcome of 
discussions regarding St Fittick’s OP56 and Doonies OP61 sites to the 

earliest appropriate meeting of Full Council.  
 

Councillor Watson moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Malik:- 
 That the Council - 

(1) note over 90% of the total area required for the ETZ can be brought 

forward without the need to develop St Fittick’s Park; 

Page 8



 

(2) agree that in 2008, Audit Scotland held a “Best Value” Audit into Aberdeen 
City Council. Agree this report is insufficient for the purposes of deciding 

on “Best Value” given the following:- 
a. The report does not identify who, if anybody, the Council has spoken 

to other than ETZ Ltd regarding the use of Council land 
b. Removing St Fittick’s Park has serious implications for the Council’s 

aspirations in respect of delivering its Local Outcome Improvement 

Plan (LOIP) and Anti-Poverty and Inequality strategies which has 
identified lifting people out of poverty and reducing mental health as 

one of its key drivers. The report says nothing about any tangible 
social and economic benefits that will be realised for Torry residents 
from the proposed officer recommendations. Noting Councillor Allard 

leads on both the LOIP and the Anti-Poverty and Inequali ty 
Committee 

c. There are no background reports within the report which would give 
new elected members any additional information required to make 
an informed decision 

d. Recommendation (e) of the report is asking Council to enter formal 
dialogue with ETZ Ltd and others to discuss the optimum partnership 

arrangements to take forward the future development of the site, 
noting the legal implications state “Best Value” cannot be determined 
until discussions take place between the parties. Agree this would 

mean that “Best Value” for the Council is limited as not all options for 
“Best Value” have occurred meaning Aberdeen City Council may be 

selling itself short in both financial and wellbeing terms. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, if elected members are not content to 

seek the above information before making an informed decision, 
Council agree the following:- 

(3) approve that Doonies OP61 be made available for lease subject to the 
Council receiving full commercial rates to support future investment and 
development in the ETZ, whilst also approving local amenity; 

(4) approve that St Fittick’s OP56 is NOT made available for lease or sale; 

(5) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord that Doonies OP61 sites 

are only to be made available for lease subject to the Council receiving 
market rental value and must remain in Council ownership and that, 
furthermore, any such lease agreement is only to be entered into with 

consent of Full Council; 
(6) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to explore all options to 

identify other potential partners for the site excluding St Fittick’s Park 
OP56 to ensure the delivery of the outcomes identified in Aberdeen’s 
Regional Economic Strategy; reporting back to Council in December 

2023; 
(7) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord, following consultation with 

the Chief Officer - Finance and Chief Officer - Governance, to consider as 
part of any potential partnership arrangements how returns from the site 
could be re-invested in both the further development of the ETZ and in the 

local community as per (6) above with a report coming back to Council in 
December 2023; and 

Page 9



 

(8) instruct the Chief Officer - Corporate Landlord to submit a progress report 
on actions in (6) and (7) to the meeting of Council in December 2023.  

 
On a division, there voted:- 

 
For the motion  (32)  -  Lord Provost; Depute Provost; and Councillors Al-Samarai, 
Allard, Alphonse, Boulton, Bouse, Brooks, Hazel Cameron, Clark, Cooke, Copland, 

Cormie, Crockett, Cross, Davidson, Fairfull, Farquhar, Greig, Henrickson, Hutchison, 
MacGregor, McLellan, McLeod, McRae, Massey, Mennie, Nicoll, Radley, Mrs Stewart, 

van Sweeden and Yuill. 
 
For the amendment  (12)  - Councillors Ali, Blake, Bonsell, Graham, Grant, Kusznir, 

Lawrence, Macdonald, Malik, Thomson, Tissera and Watson. 
 

Absent from the division  (1)  -  Councillor Houghton.  
 
The Council resolved:- 

to adopt the motion.  

Page 10



 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

ABERDEEN, 24 August 2023.  Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor McRae, 
Convener; Councillor Bouse, Vice Convener; and Councillors Allard (as substitute 

for Councillor Radley for articles 1 to 3), Alphonse, Blake, Boulton, Clark, Cooke, 
Copland, Farquhar, Lawrence, Radley (for articles 4 to 6) and Thomson. 

 

 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found 

here. 
  
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point 

of approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 

 
 
 

MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE OF 29 JUNE 2023 

 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of the previous meeting of 29 June 2023, 

for approval. 

 
The Committee resolved: 

to approve the minute as a correct record. 

 
 
COMMITTEE PLANNER 
 
2. The Committee had before it the committee business planner, as prepared by the 

Interim Chief Officer – Governance (Legal). 
 
The Committee resolved:- 

(i) to note the reason for the delay in regards to item 8 (Land at Greenferns sites 
OP28 and OP33); and 

(ii) to otherwise note the committee business planner. 
 

 
THE JAMES HUTTON INSTITUTE, COUNTESSWELLS ROAD, ABERDEEN - 221419 
 

3. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Strategic Place 
Planning, which recommended:- 

 
That the application for Detailed Planning Permission for the formation of access road, 
amended car parking and associated drainage at the James Hutton Institute, 

Countesswells Road Aberdeen, be approved subject to the following conditions:- 
 
 
Conditions  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5.1

https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MId=8539&Ver=4


2 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

 
(01) DURATION OF PERMISSION 

 

The development to which this notice relates must be begun not later than the expiration 
of 3 years beginning with the date of this notice. If development has not begun at the 

expiration of the 3-year period, the planning permission lapses. 
 
Reason - in accordance with section 58 (duration of planning permission) of the 1997 

act. 
 

(02) TREE PROTECTION FENCING 
 

No development (including site setup) shall take place unless the tree protection 

measures shown in Tree Survey JHIC-2211-TRA-A (dated 17 March 2023) and drawing 
JHIC-22-11-TP (Rev.A) by Astell Associates (or such other details and drawing which 
may be approved by the planning authority for the same purpose) have been 

implemented. Thereafter the fencing shall remain in place for the duration of construction 
of the development. 

 
Reason – to protect trees and vegetation from damage during construction in accordance 
with Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands). 

 
(03) INVASIVE NON-NATIVE SPECIES 

 
No development shall take place unless an invasive non-native species management 
plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The plan 

shall include details of measures designed to minimise the risk of non-native species 
being spread during construction activities within the application site. Thereafter, 

construction shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plan. 
 
Reason – to control the spread of invasive non-native species during construction. 

 
(04) LANDSCAPING AND COMPENSATORY TREE PLANTING 

 
No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme of landscaping for the site 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme 

shall include tree/shrub planting numbers, densities, locations, species, sizes, and stage 
of maturity at planting. 

 
Thereafter all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the completion of 

the development and any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 

diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a size and species 
similar to those originally required to be planted, or in accordance with such other scheme 
as may be submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority.  

 

Page 12



3 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

Reason – to satisfactorily integrate the development into its surroundings and maintain 
the visual amenity of the area. 
 

(05) TRAVEL PLAN 
 

The junction and road hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless a travel plan 
for the campus has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. 
The travel plan shall outline sustainable measures to deter the use of the private car, in 

particular single occupant trips and provides detailed monitoring arrangements and 
modal split targets. 

 
Thereafter the travel plan shall be implemented. 
 

Reason – to encourage more sustainable forms of travel to campus. 
 

(06) DRAINAGE 

 
The junction and road hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless all surface 

water drainage works detailed in the approved Drainage Assessment (140950 - DA01 
(Rev.2) and drawing 140950/2000 (Rev.E) produced by Fairhurst (or such other drawing 
approved for the purpose) have been installed in accordance with the approved details 

and is available for use. 
 

Reason – to safeguard water qualities, prevent flooding and ensure that the junction and 
road can be adequately drained. 
 

The Committee heard from Matthew Easton, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance 
of the application and answered various questions from Members. 

 
The Committee then heard from Mirjam Brady-van den Bos, Coleen Murphy, Ellen 
Robinson and Heather Turnbull, who all objected to the application and requested that 

the application be refused. 
 

A statement was read out by the clerk on behalf of Paul Howlett and Neil McDonald, who 
also both objected to the application.   
 

The Committee then heard from Alasdair Cox, applicant, who spoke in support of the 
application. 

 
The Convener moved, seconded by the Vice Convener:- 
 

That the application be approved conditionally in line with the officers 
recommendation with an extra condition added to read:- 

“LANDSCAPING, BIODIVERSITY ENHANCEMENT AND COMPENSATORY 
TREE PLANTING 
 

Page 13



4 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme of landscaping for the 
site and screening of the area between the new access road and rear of homes at 
Macaulay Grange has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 

authority. The scheme shall include – 
 

(i) Existing landscape vegetated areas to be retained, including proposed 
protection measures; 

(ii) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges, grassed / wildflower areas; 

(iii) A schedule of planting to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers and density; 

(iv) The location, design and specification of biodiversity enhancement 
measures;  

(v) A programme for the implementation and subsequent maintenance of the 

proposed landscaping. 
 
Thereafter all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 

five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or in 

accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority.   

 
Reason – to satisfactorily integrate the development into its surroundings, help 
screen the development from homes at Macaulay Grange and maintain the visual 

amenity of the area. 
 

Councillor Boulton, seconded by Councillor Farquhar, moved as an amendment:- 
 

That the application be refused as the loss of trees and woodlands would be 

contrary to policies 1, 3, 4 and 6 of National Planning Framework 4 and policies 
NE3 and NE5 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan by virtue of the adverse 

effects on biodiversity, landscape, amenity and climate.  
 

The additional access onto Countesswells Road would have an adverse impact 

on pedestrian and traffic safety due to the proximity to the nearby primary school 
and due to driveways immediately opposite which would result in a breach of the 

guidance in the interim Aberdeen Planning Guidance on Transport and 
Accessibility.   

 

On a division, there voted – for the motion (7) – the Convener, the Vice Convener and 
Councillors Allard, Alphonse, Cooke, Copland and Lawrence – for the amendment (5) – 

Councillors Blake, Boulton, Clark, Farquhar and Thomson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 

to approve the application conditionally. 

Page 14



5 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

 
 
53 ERSKINE STREET ABERDEEN - 230582 

 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Strategic Place 

Planning, which recommended:- 

 
That the application for Detailed Planning Permission for the change of use of flat to short 

term let accommodation (sui generis) with maximum occupancy of two people at Ground 
Floor Right, 53 Erskine Street Aberdeen, be approved subject to the following conditions: - 

 
Conditions 

 

(1) DURATION OF PERMISSION 
 

The development to which this notice relates must be begun not later than the expiration 
of 3 years beginning with the date of this notice. If development has not begun at the 
expiration of the 3-year period, the planning permission lapses. 

 
Reason - in accordance with section 58 (duration of planning permission) of the 1997 
act. 

 
(2) TIME LIMIT FOR SHORT-TERM LET USE 

 
The hereby approved use of the property as Short-Term Let accommodation shall expire 
5 years following the date of the grant of permission as stated on this notice, unless a 

further planning permission has been granted for continued use of the property as Short-
Term Let accommodation in the meantime. Should no further planning permission be 

granted then the property shall revert to mainstream residential use as a flat after the 
aforementioned 5-year period. 
 

Reason: In order to allow the local housing need and demand situation and the local 
economic benefits derived from the use of the property as a Short Term Let to be 

reassessed in 5 years’ time, to ensure that the loss of the property as residential 
accommodation would remain compliant with Policy 30 of NPF4. 
 

The Committee heard from Alex Ferguson, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance of 
the application and answered various questions from Members. 

 
The Committee then heard from Sophie Morrison, applicant, who spoke in support of the 
application. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 

to approve the application conditionally. 
 
 

Page 15



6 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

AIRYHALL DISTRIBUTION SERVICE RESERVOIR, CRAIGTON ROAD, ABERDEEN 
- 230212 
 

5. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Strategic Place 
Planning which recommended:- 

 
That the application for Detailed Planning Permission for the installation of tank mounted 
solar PV arrays and associated equipment at Airyhall Distribution Service Reservoir, 

Craigton Road Aberdeen, be approved subject to the following conditions:- 
 
Conditions 

 
(01) DURATION OF PERMISSION 

 
The development to which this notice relates must be begun not later than the expiration 

of 3 years beginning with the date of this notice. If development has not begun at the 
expiration of the 3-year period, the planning permission lapses. 
 

Reason - in accordance with section 58 (duration of planning permission) of the 1997 
act. 
 

(02) SITE RESTORATION 
 

On the solar arrays hereby approved no longer being used for the purposes of generating 
electricity, (i) the planning authority must be notified; and (ii) within six months the solar 
arrays and supporting frames shall be removed from the site and land restored to its 

condition before the development took place or such other state as may be agreed with 
the planning authority. 

 
Reason – to minimise unnecessary visual intrusion for surrounding residents. 
 

The Committee heard from Matthew Easton, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance 
of the application and answered various questions from Members.   

 
The Committee then heard from Mark Gordon who objected to the application.   
 

The Committee then heard from Roddy Spiers, applicant, who spoke in support of the 
application.   

 
The Committee resolved:- 

to approve the application conditionally with an extra condition added to read:- 

 
(3) LANDSCAPING AND BIODIVERSITY ENHANCEMENT 

 
No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme of landscaping for the 
site and screening of the areas between the solar arrays and surrounding 

residential properties (taking into account the operational nature of the site) has 

Page 16



7 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme 
shall include – 
 

(i) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges, grassed / wildflower areas; 
(ii) A schedule of planting to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed 

numbers and density; 
(iii) The location, design and specification of biodiversity enhancement 

measures; 

(iv) A programme for the implementation and subsequent maintenance of the 
proposed landscaping. 

 
Thereafter all planting and seeding comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 

completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 
five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 

others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or in 
accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 

writing for the purpose by the planning authority.   
 
Reason – to satisfactorily integrate the development into its surroundings, help 

screen the development from homes at Macaulay Drive and maintain the visual 
amenity of the area. 

 
 
SITE OF FORMER CORDYCE SCHOOL, RIVERVIEW DRIVE, DYCE, ABERDEEN - 

221232 
 

6. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Strategic Place 
Planning which recommended:- 

 

That the application for Detailed Planning Permission for the erection of 91 homes 
including associated infrastructure, open space and landscaping at the site of the former 

Cordyce School, Riverview Drive Aberdeen, be approved subject to a legal agreement 
and subject to the following conditions:- 
 
Conditions 

 

(01) DURATION OF PERMISSION 
 

The development to which this notice relates must be begun not later than the expiration 

of 3 years beginning with the date of this notice. If development has not begun at the 
expiration of the 3-year period, the planning permission lapses. 

 
Reason - in accordance with section 58 (duration of planning permission) of the 1997 
act. 

 

Page 17



8 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

(02) MATERIALS 
 

That no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external finishing 

materials to the roofs, walls, doors and windows of the development hereby approved 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and thereafter 

the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so agreed. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity. 

 
(03) TREE PROTECTION MEASURES (01) 

 
That no development shall take place unless all tree protection measures as shown on 
drawing 375340-QGIS010/Rev002 by EnviroCentre, dated 31st March 2023 have been 

erected. Once in place, all tree protection measures shall remain in situ until all 
construction work associated with the hereby approved development has been 
completed and all plant and machinery has been removed from site. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the 

construction of the development. 
 

(04) TREE PROTECTION MEASURES (02) 

 
That no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels or 

construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in the 
aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the Planning 
Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could extend to within 5 

metres of foliage, branches or trunks. 
 

Reason: To ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of 
the development. 
 

(05) LANDSCAPING (SPECIES) 
 

That no development shall take place until details of all tree species to be planted as part 
of the landscaping scheme hereby approved have been submitted and agreed in writing 
by the Planning Authority. Subsequently, only the tree species as set out in the hereby 

agreed details shall be planted as part of the agreed landscaping scheme. 
 

Reason: To ensure no conflict with safeguarding criteria of Aberdeen International 
Airport. 
 

(06) LANDSCAPING (IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE) 
 

All soft and hard landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved scheme as shown on drawings 415.45.01b; 415.45.02b; 415.45.03b; 
415.45.04b; 415.45.05b; 415.45.06b; and 415.45.07b, all by EnviroCentre and dated 

August 2023, with tree species as agreed as part of condition 5 as set out above, and 

Page 18



9 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

shall be completed during the planting season immediately following the commencement 
of the development or as otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.   
 

Any planting which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, 
in the opinion of the Planning Authority is dying, being severely damaged or becoming 

seriously diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar size and species to those 
originally required to be planted. 
 

Thereafter, all management and maintenance of the landscaped and open space areas 
as shown on in the ‘Maintenance’ schedule on drawing 415.45.02b, by EnviroCentre and 

dated August 2023 shall be implemented, in perpetuity, in accordance with the approved 
programme. 
 

Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping which 
will help to integrate the proposed development into the local landscape in the interests 
of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure that the landscaping is managed and 

maintained in perpetuity. 
 

(07) PLOT BOUNDARIES (IMPLEMENTATION) 
 

That no individual plot hereby approved shall be occupied until all relevant plot boundary 

enclosures as shown on drawings A1-90-02/RevC for that plot have been implemented 
in their entirety unless otherwise agreed in writing by the planning authority. For the 

avoidance of doubt, this shall include the specification as set out in Section 7.3 on page 
20 of the submitted Noise Impact Assessment by EnviroCentre, dated April 2023 for 
acoustic barriers fences to plots 1 through to 15 and plots 70 through to 73, unless 

otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

Reason: In the interest of visual and residential amenity. 
 

(08) NOISE MITIGATION MEASURES 

 
That no residential unit hereby approved shall be occupied unless fitted with glazing and 

trickle vents as specified in section 7.4 on page 20 of the of the submitted Noise Impact 
Assessment by EnviroCentre, dated April 2023 or such other specification as may 
subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority. 

 
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity. 

 
(09) CAR PARKING (IMPLEMENTATION) 

 

That plots 70 through to 91 of the development hereby approved shall not be occupied 
unless the related car parking areas have been constructed, drained, laid-out and 

demarcated in accordance with drawing A1-90-03/RevA, by the Architecture and 
Planning, dated 10th May 2023 or such other drawing as may subsequently be submitted 
and approved in writing by the planning authority. Such areas shall not thereafter be used 

for any other purpose than the parking of cars ancillary to the development. 

Page 19



10 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

 
Reason: In the interests of public safety and the free flow of traffic. 
 

(10) EV CHARGING 
 

That no development shall take place until a detailed scheme of electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall take account of the requirements of section 7.2 (Electric Vehicle 

Charging) of the Building Standards Domestic Technical Handbook (June 2023) and 
show the location and specification of active and passive charging infrastructure. 

Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority, no unit within 
the development shall be occupied unless the scheme for that particular plot has been 
implemented and charging points are available for use. 

 
Reason: To future proof the site to increase the use of electric vehicles. 
 

(11) RESIDENTIAL TRAVEL PLAN 
 

That no residential unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a Residential Travel Pack 
has been submitted and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Such approved 
packs shall subsequently be issued to the first occupiers of each residential unit. 

 
Reason: To promote sustainable travel methods 

 
(12) PEDESTRIAN CROSSING AND BUS STOP 

 

That no development shall take place until a scheme detailing the relocation and 
upgrading of the existing bus stops on Riverview Drive; and installation of a signalised 

pedestrian/cycle crossing on Riverview Drive has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority.  Subsequently, no residential unit shall be occupied 
until the approved scheme has been implemented in its entirety. 

 
Reason: In the interest of public safety and to ensure delivery of a safe route to school. 

 
(13) LOW AND ZERO CARBON BUILDING AND WATER EFFICIENCY 

 

No development shall take place until a scheme detailing compliance with policy R6 (Low 
and Zero Carbon Building and Water Efficiency) of the 2023 Aberdeen Local 

Development Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, no residential unit shall be occupied unless any recommended 
measures specified in that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions and water 

efficiency have been implemented. 
 

Reason: To ensure that the development complies with requirements for reductions in 
carbon emissions and water efficiency as specified in policy R6 (Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings and Water Efficiency) of the 2023 Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 

 

Page 20



11 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

(14) PROGRAMME OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL WORKS 
 

No development shall take place until an archaeological written scheme of investigation 

(WSI) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The WSI 
shall include details of how the recording and recovery of archaeological resources found 

within the application site shall be undertaken, and how any updates, if required, to the 
WSI will be provided throughout the implementation of the programme of archaeological 
works. Should the archaeological works reveal the need for post excavation analysis the 

development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a post excavation research 
design (PERD) for the analysis, publication and dissemination of results and archive 

deposition has been submitted and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the 
PERD has been carried out in complete accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To safeguard and record the archaeological potential of the area. 
 

(15) DUST MANAGEMENT 
 

No development shall take place until: 
(a) An Air Quality (Dust) Risk Assessment by a suitably qualified consultant has been 

submitted to and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. This Air Quali ty 

(Dust) Risk Assessment shall be carried out in accordance with Guidance on the 
Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction by the Institute of Air 

Quality Management (IAQM) to predict the likely dust levels and impact on air 
quality including a determination of its significance; and 

(b) A Dust Management Plan (based on the results of the Air Quality (Dust) Risk 

Assessment) detailing the necessary dust control measures to be implemented, 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. 

 
Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details. 
 

Reason: In the interest of residential amenity 
 

(16) INTRUSIVE GROUND INVESTIGATION 
 

No development shall take place until an intrusive ground investigation to establish if 

contamination is present has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, no residential unit shall be occupied unless any necessary 

remediation has been carried out in accordance with the agreed details. 
 
Reason: In the interest of public health. 

 
 

(17) EXTERNAL LIGHTING SCHEME 
 

No development shall take place until a detailed scheme of all external lighting proposed 

for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 

Page 21



12 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

Thereafter, any external lighting installed outwith individual residential curtilages shall be 
in accordance with the agreed details. 
 

Reason: To assist in the protection of protected species. 
 

(18) PLAY AREAS 
 

That prior to the occupation of the 60th residential unit hereby approved both the informal 

play area (kickabout space) and the equipped play space as shown on drawings 
415.45.06b and 415.45.07b, both by EnviroCentre, dated May 2023 shall be installed in 

accordance with details shown on these drawings and are available for use, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Pplanning Authority. 
 

Reason: To ensure sufficient play spaces are available to serve the residents of the 
development. 
 

(19) PROTECTED SPECIES 
 

No development (including demolition) shall take place until all mitigation/ compensation 
measures as set out in section 4.2 on page 10 of the Otter and Bat Survey by 
EnviroCentre and dated April 2023; and the section ‘Good Practice Mitigation and 

Compensation’ on page 3 of the ‘Mammal Burrow Monitoring’ document by EnviroCentre 
and dated 11 October 2022 have been, or are being, implemented in accordance with 

the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure no adverse impact on protected species. 

 
(20) BAT ROOST POTENTIAL SURVEY 

 
Prior to the removal of any trees on site, a further bat roost survey to determine the 
character of tree cavities and to identify the presence/absence of bats in trees which host 

potential roost features should be undertaken, submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority.  If any bats are identified, then the affected tree(s) shall not be 

removed unless a mitigation plan has been submitted and agreed in writing by the 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the agreed mitigation plan shall be implemented. 
 

Reason: To ensure no adverse impact on protected species. 
 

The Committee heard from Dineke Brasier, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance of 
the application and answered various questions from Members. 
 
 
 

The Committee resolved:- 

to approve the application conditionally subject to a legal agreement and an extra 
condition added to read:- 

 

Page 22



13 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

24 August 2023 
 

 
 

 

(21)  CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to, and approved 

in writing by the Planning Authority a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
which includes measures to ensure that no pollution (in particular sediment and silt) 

enters the unnamed watercourse to the north boundary or the river Don. The 
development shall be carried out in complete accordance with such plan as so approved. 
 

Reason: To prevent pollution of watercourses  
- Councillor Ciaran McRae, Convener  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose 

of Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Directorate

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, 

removed or transferred 

21 September 2023

92-126 John Street -

230514

To approve or refuse the application for the erection of 

student accommodation (circa 383 beds) with 

associated infrastructure and landscaping

Gavin Clark
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

PRE APPLICATION 

FORUM - Land At Rigifa 

Farm Cove Road 

Aberdeen

To hear from the applicant in relation to proposed 

battery storage units with associated infrastructure, 

control and switch containers and associated works

Gavin Clark
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 

02 November 2023

Committee Annual 

Effectiveness Report

To report on the annual effectiveness for the period 14 

October 2022 to 14 October 2023.  

Lynsey McBain Governance Commissioning GD8.5

259 Union Street - 230246

To approve or refuse the application for change of use 

from office to student accommodation (sui generis) 

including refurbishment and replacement of windows, 

alterations of vents and associated works

Laura 

Robertson 

Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

Land At Greenferns

Sites OP28 & OP33

To approve or refuse the application for Residential-

led, mixed use development comprising approximately 

1,650 homes, employment use, a neighbourhood 

centre comprising local retail and commercial 

provision, leisure and community uses and associated 

infrastructure including new and upgraded access 

roads, landscaping, open space and engineering works

Gavin Clark
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BUSINESS PLANNER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

The Business Planner details the reports which have been instructed by the Committee as well as reports which the Functions expect to be submitting for the calendar year.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6.1



2

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose 

of Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Directorate

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, 

removed or transferred 

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Former Banks o’Dee 

Nursing Home, 

Abbotswell Road - 230685

To approve or refuse the application for conversion to 

24 affordable flats, installation of replacement windows 

and doors, cladding, alterations to car park and garden 

ground
Alex Ferguson

Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

Former Aberdeen Market 

And 91-93 Union Street - 

230704

To approve or refuse the application for Replacement 

of Aberdeen Market (including redevelopment of 91-93 

Union Street) with mixed use development including 

retail (class 1A), food and drink (class 3), leisure (class 

11), and landscaping / public open space including 

proposed pedestrian link from Union Street to the 

Green, and associated works

Matthew 

Easton

Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

Energy Transition Zone - 

public consultation 

At the meeting on 29 June 2023, it was agreed (a) to 

approve the content of the draft ETZ Masterplan 

(Appendix 1); (b) instructs the Chief Officer – Strategic 

Place Planning to, subject to any minor drafting 

changes, publish the draft ETZ Masterplan for a six 

week period of non statutory public consultation; and 

(c) to instruct the Chief Officer – Strategic Place 

Planning to report the outcomes of the public 

consultation and any proposed revisions to the draft 

ETZ Masterplan to a subsequent Planning 

Development Management Committee within the next 

six months.

Laura 

Robertson 

Strategic Place 

Planning 
4 and 5

07 December 2023

Procedure for 

Representations 

At the meeting of PDMC on 3 November 2022, a new 

draft procedure was agreed for allowing 

representations to speak at Committee.  It was agreed 

to instruct the Chief Officer – Strategic Place Planning 

to report back to the Committee on the effectiveness of 

the Procedure by December 2023. 

Alan Thomson 
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 5

Future applications to 

PDMC (date of meeting 

yet to be finalised. 

Aberdeen Grammar 

School FP's Club, 86 

Queens Road - 211806

To approve or refuse the application for erection of 

3no. villas, 4no. apartments and 2no. maisonette 

apartments with associated works Jane Forbes
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

P
age 26



2

A B C D E F G H I

Report Title
Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose 

of Report
Update Report Author Chief Officer Directorate

Terms of 

Reference

Delayed or 

Recommende

d for removal 

or transfer, 

enter either D, 

R, or T

Explanation if delayed, 

removed or transferred 

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Summerhill Church 

Stronsay Drive - 220990

To approve or refuse the application for redevelopment 

of church and manse site for residential development 

(14 dwellings)

Lucy Greene
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

Waterton House Abereen  

- 230297

To approve or refuse the application for PPP for 16 

residential plots Lucy Greene
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

Rosehill House, Ashgrove 

Rd West - 230414

To approve or refuse the application for McDonald’s 

Restaurant with drive thru Lucy Greene
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

56 Park Road - 221074 To approve or refuse the application for the erection of 

30 flats Robert Forbes
Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

Woodend - Culter House 

Road - 210889

To approve or refuse the application for erection of 

19no. self-build dwelling houses with associated 

landscaping, access and infrastructure
Dineke Brasier

Strategic Place 

Planning
Place 1

26 Rubislaw Den North - 

230665

To approve or refuse the application for erection of 

single storey extension, window replacement to rear; 

and installation of two new gates to front

Rebecca Kerr
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

Former Cults Railway 

Station

Station Road

Cults - 230772

To approve or refuse the application for change of use 

from class 4 (business) to class 1A (shops and 

financial professional and other services) and class 3 

(food and drink) with covered outdoor seating area 

including demolition of existing lean-to extension and 

erection of single storey extension; alterations to a 

shop front; re-cladding; installation of doors, rooflights 

and roof repairs with associated car parking and other 

associated works

Gavin Clark
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

Former Cults Station, 

Station Road, Cults - 

230922

To approve or refuse the application for retention of 

takeaway food kiosk and outdoor seating area with 

decking including change of use (temporary for 12 

months)

Gavin Clark
Strategic Place 

Planning 
Place 1

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



 

Planning Development Management Committee 

Report by Development Management Manager 

Committee Date: 21st September 2023 

 

Site Address: 92-126 John Street, City Centre, Aberdeen, AB25 1LE 

Application 

Description: 

Erection of student accommodation (circa 383 beds) with associated infrastructure 

and landscaping 

 Application Ref: 230514/DPP 

Application Type Detailed Planning Permission 

Application Date: 4 May 2023 

Applicant: Levelling Up Real Estate Ltd 

Ward: George Street/Harbour 

Community 

Council: 
George Street 

 Case Officer: Gavin Clark 

 
 

 

 
 

 © Crown Copyright. Aberdeen City Council. Licence Number: 100023401 – 2023 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Conditionally and Subject to Legal Agreement 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7.1



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

APPLICATION BACKGROUND 
 
Site Description 
 
The application site is located to the immediate north of the city centre boundary and incorporates 
a site extending to approximately 0.47 hectares on the northern side of John Street. The site is 
largely vacant and was previously occupied by since demolished 3 ½ storey tenement buildings, 
which had commercial uses at ground floor level. A single storey snooker club building occupied 
the east part of the site. The site has been cleared, lying vacant for around ten years. The main 
part of the application site is relatively flat and currently surrounded by hoarding on the perimeter.  
The application site also includes a small section of open hardstanding to the western side of the 
entrance to the existing Woolmanhill student accommodation.  
 
The surrounding area contains a mixture of uses with residential flats of mainly four storeys in 
height located to the north and east, five storey student accommodation (Woolmanhill flats) 
located to the west and the three storey Sandman Hotel located to the south. Also prominent in 
the surrounding streetscape is the now vacant former Woolmanhill Hospital complex that lies to 
the west.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
Planning permission (Ref: 161427/DPP) was approved by the Planning Development 
Management Committee, following the conclusion of a legal agreement, in March 2017 for the 
erection of student accommodation (374 bed spaces) with associated infrastructure and 
landscaping. This permission was not implemented and has since expired. 
 
Planning permission (Ref: 130579) was approved in October 2013 for a change of use and 
redevelopment to a Class 7 hotel (182 bedrooms) with associated food and beverage facility and 
associated parking, class 1 retail (375sqm). This permission was not implemented and has since 
expired.  
 
An application (Ref: 090111) was withdrawn in October 2013 for a change of use to residential 
and development of 40 flats with associated parking. In addition, planning permission (Ref: 
A6/1811) was approved following an appeal in December 2009 for a change of use to residential & 
development of 50 no flats. This latter permission was not implemented and has since expired.  
 
APPLICATION DESCRIPTION 
 
Description of Proposal 
 
The proposal seeks detailed planning permission for the erection of student accommodation with 
associated infrastructure and landscaping. The proposed development incorporates a “U” shaped 
building footprint orientated around a central courtyard area. The proposal comprises a range of 
building heights and would be 7 storeys in height fronting onto John Street (approximately 26.5m 
total height), 6 storeys in height  within the eastern section of the site and 5 storeys in height along 
the northern boundary (approximately 16m total height). The proposal includes a range of setback 
elements to provide elevational interest. The highest part of the building is proposed as a ‘tower’ 
feature in the south east corner of the site. The main frontage of the building would be onto John 
Street, where an active frontage is proposed through the location of the main entrance and egress, 
and communal activity spaces. The internal courtyard area would be a shared amenity space for 
residents. 
 

Page 30



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

A variety of external materials are proposed include grey brick, a metal cladding (colour to be 
agreed via condition), dark grey curtain walling, glazing and a variety of doors at ground floor level.  
 
In terms of access and parking, the main pedestrian and vehicular access to the site would be 
taken from John Street, pedestrian access on the southern building frontage and vehicular access 
from the west side of the site. The proposals would also include the provision of seven parking 
spaces. Five would be located at the western edge of the site with one of these utilised for EV 
charging and two further spaces would be adjacent to the courtyard and be utilised for disabled 
parking/ drop off. The proposals would also provide 140 secure cycle parking spaces along the 
eastern edge of the site. A number of hedges would be planted through the development, and 
eleven trees are shown on the landscaping plan.  
 
Amendments 
 
The proposals have been revised since the original submission to take on board design 
amendments suggested by the Planning Service. This included alterations to the frontage of the 
building to create a more “active” frontage, amendments to the height of the ground floor 
elements, alterations to the courtyard layout, alterations to the western elevation, amendment to 
the location of parking spaces, alterations to the “tower” element on the southern elevation, 
alterations to the window design on the southern elevation and clarification/ amendment to the 
materials proposed throughout the development.  
 
Further information was also submitted to address comments from consultees including a revised 
Flood Risk Assessment, further information on waste and cycle parking facilities and clarification 
on the levels of Developer Obligations sought.  
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at: 
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RTYWUMBZJ1B00 
 

• Indicative Student Management Plan – May 2023 

• Pre-Application Consultation Report – May 2023 

• Phase 1 Desk Study – May 2023 

• Planning Statement – May 2023 

• Planning Sustainability Statement – May 2023 

• Drainage Assessment – May 2023 

• Transport Statement – May 2023 

• Noise and Vibration Survey Assessment – May 2023 

• Design and Access Statement – Addendum – July 2023 

• Flood Risk Assessment – July 2023 

• Daylight and Sunlight Analysis Report – July 2023 
 
Reason for Referral to Committee 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management Committee because 
it is a Major Development, subsequently the proposals fall out with the Scheme of Delegation.  
 
 
 
 

Page 31

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RTYWUMBZJ1B00
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RTYWUMBZJ1B00


Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

Pre-Application Consultation 
 
The applicant undertook statutory pre-application consultation. The first public consultation event 
took place on the 8th February 2023, with the second event taking place on the 29th March 2023. 
Both of these events took place at Aberdeen Central Library, with both consultations lasting for 
two weeks after drop in events to allow for further questions, and submission of feedback forms. 
 
Regular consultation also took place with the Community Council and a presentation was provided 
to George Street Community Council on the 11th April 2023. Local Councillors and neighbouring 
properties were also advised of the consultation events.  
 
The applicant presented to the Council’s Pre-Application Forum on the 20th April 2023. The 
presentation and accompanying PowerPoint slides provided an overview of the site location and 
history; the planning context of the site; the pre-application consultation and engagement timelines 
and community feedback worked into the design; key features of the development; site appraisal 
and contextual analysis and the overall vision of the proposed development. Councillors in 
attendance had the opportunity to indicate any initial issues they would like the applicants to 
consider and address in the submission of the planning application. The feedback from this 
meeting was worked into the design proposals where possible.  
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Police Scotland – provided some general guidance noting that the site is in a low crime area and 
that due consideration should be given to crime reduction measures. They have suggested liaison 
with the police service prior to proceeding with the development and an informative can be added 
to the consent in this regard.  
 
ACC - Roads Development Management Team – have no objection to the proposals following 
the submission of amended plans. Their response will be discussed in greater detail in the 
evaluation section of this report.  
 
ACC - Developer Obligations – advised that contributions are required toward healthcare 
facilities (£132,595) and open space provision (£42,053). 
 
ACC - Environmental Health – have provided various comments in relation to noise, air quality 
and dust management. Their response will be discussed in greater detail in the evaluation section 
of this report.  
 
ACC – Contaminated Land – have reviewed the Desk Study Report and generally agree with the 
conclusions and recommendations. They did disagree with the assertion that human health risks 
can be discounted and asked that the proposed geo-environmental investigation (which would 
form a condition of the permission) takes account and builds on the information previously 
obtained.  
 
ACC - Structures, Flooding And Coastal Engineering – have no objections to the proposal 
following the submission of a revised Flood Risk Assessment. Their response will be discussed in 
greater detail in the evaluation section of this report.  
 
ACC - Waste and Recycling – have no objection following the submission of amended plans. 
Their response will be discussed in greater detail in the evaluation section of this report.  
 
Scottish Water – unable to confirm if there is sufficient capacity at the Invercannie Water 
Treatment Works and suggest that the developer contact them directly. Confirm that there is 

Page 32



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

sufficient capacity at the Nigg Waste Water Treatment Works. They also provided some general 
guidance on their assets in the surrounding area and confirmation that they will not accept any 
surface water connections into the combined sewer system.  
 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency – note that the site lies within the SEPA Future Fluvial 
Flood Plain and that parts of the site lie within the SEPA Surface Water Flood Map. In particular, it 
is indicated that there may be potential for surface water flooding between the Gilcomston Burn 
open channel to the north and John Street. They supported the Flooding team’s requirement for 
further assessment on the source of flooding and provided recommendations on how these 
assessment could take place. SEPA also confirmed that if colleagues in flooding were content with 
the revised information there would be no further requirement to consult them on the proposals. 
 
Archaeology Service (Aberdeenshire Council) – note that the application site falls within an 
area which has been subject to an archaeological evaluation in 2014 (undertaken by CFA 
Archaeology Ltd) which revealed no surviving archaeological features or artefacts of significance, 
and as such confirmed that they had no further comment to make in this instance.  
 
George Street Community Council – no response received.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 

Two representations were received, both objecting to the application. The matters raised can be 
summarised as follows: 
 

1. The first representation was generally content with the proposed development but 
requested a change to the northern boundary to remove the proposed timber fence and 
replace it with a brick wall or similar at a height of 1.8m; 
 

2. The second representation raised concerns regarding the height of the building, and the 
potential for overshadowing properties in the surrounding area. The comment also 
disagreed with the applicant’s comment that the proposals would be a legible “marker” 
when viewed from distance along Denburn Road.  

 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Legislative Requirements 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where 
making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the 
Development Plan; and, that any determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far 
as material to the application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 requires 
the planning authority to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Development Plan 
 

National Planning Framework 4 
 

Page 33



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) is the long-term spatial strategy for Scotland and contains 
a comprehensive set of national planning policies that form part of the statutory development plan. 
The relevant provisions of NPF4 that require consideration in terms of this application are – 
 

• Policy 1: Tacking the climate and nature crises 

• Policy 2: Climate mitigation and adaptation 

• Policy 3: Biodiversity 

• Policy 7: Historic assets and places 

• Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land and empty buildings 

• Policy 12: Zero waste 

• Policy 13: Sustainable transport 

• Policy 14: Design, quality and place 

• Policy 15: Local living and 20-minute neighbourhoods 

• Policy 16: Quality homes 

• Policy 22: Flood risk and water management 

• Policy 24: Digital infrastructure 

• Policy 27: City, town, local and commercial centres 
 

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2023) 
 
The following policies are relevant – 
 

• Policy WB2: Air Quality 

• Policy WB3: Noise 

• Policy NE4: Our Water Environment 

• Policy D1: Quality Placemaking 

• Policy D2: Amenity 

• Policy D3: Big Buildings 

• Policy D4: Landscape 

• Policy D6: Historic Environment 

• Policy R2: Degraded and Contaminated Land 

• Policy R5: Waste Management Requirements for New Development 

• Policy R6: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency 

• Policy H2: Mixed Use Areas 

• Policy H7: Student Accommodation Developments 

• Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations 

• Policy T2: Sustainable Transport 

• Policy T3: Parking 

• Policy CI1: Digital Infrastructure 
 

Interim Aberdeen Planning Guidance 
 
Aberdeen Planning Guidance is Interim Planning Guidance. The documents hold limited weight 
until they are adopted by the Council. The weight to be given to Interim Planning Guidance prior to 
its adoption is a matter for the decision maker. The following guidance is relevant – 
 

• Air Quality 

• Noise 

• Materials: External Building Materials and Their Use in Aberdeen 

• Student Accommodation 

• Transport and Accessibility 

Page 34



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

• Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality 

• Big Buildings 

• Waste Management Requirements for New Development 

• Resources for New Development 

• George Street Masterplan (Draft) 
 

EVALUATION 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Policy H2 (Mixed Use Areas) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “applications for development or 
change of use within Mixed Use Areas must take into account the existing uses and character of 
the surrounding area and avoid direct conflict with the adjacent land uses and amenity. Where 
new housing is proposed, a satisfactory residential environment should be created which should 
not impinge upon the viability or operation of existing businesses in the vicinity.” 
 
In terms of the above, student accommodation can be considered to be a quasi-residential use, 
with the main differences being the temporary, typically annual basis of the tenancies and shared 
communal facilities (kitchen, living areas and associated facilities). In this case, the surrounding 
area contains a mixture of uses, including hotels, residential and business uses and for the 
reasons detailed below is not considered to have an adverse impact on the character or 
appearance of the surrounding area, nor on the function of any of the above mentioned uses. It is 
also noted that the provision of student accommodation on site, on a similar scale to that which is 
proposed, was previously found to be acceptable in 2017 and the redevelopment of the site for 
such purposes would be acceptable in principle when considered against Policy H2 of the ALDP 
2023 and for the further reasons detailed below.  
 
Policy H7 (Student Accommodation Developments) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “proposals for 
new Student Accommodation development will be supported in principle where: the location is 
accessible by means of walking, cycling, wheeling and public transport to the university or college 
facilities; the proposals offer appropriate facilities; in particular providing an appropriate level of 
amenity space, refuse/ recycling storage space and secure bike storage facilities; and there will be 
no significant adverse impact to the amenity of the surrounding area.” 
 
The application site is located immediately adjacent to the defined city centre boundary and is 
accessible via varying modes of transport, being close to a number of bus routes, being within 
easy walking distance of the city centre and providing on site amenity space and storage facilities 
for a large number of future occupants. The proposals also provide facilities including communal 
areas, study areas and appropriate waste facilities. As is discussed later within this report the 
proposals also have no adverse impact on the amenity of the surrounding area and would 
therefore be in compliance with Policy H7 of the ALDP 2023. 
 
The site is also adjacent to the Draft George Street Masterplan area, which as a draft Council 
strategy to guide the development and investment in the area was approved by Council for 
consultation in December 2022 and the Finalised Draft Masterplan is to be presented to Council 
on or before December 2023. The Vision of the Draft Masterplan is ‘George Street Connected! – 
The ‘local’ Neighbourhood: a vibrant, creative and inclusive city centre community at the heart of 
reinvention’. The site is identified within the Draft Masterplan as an adjacent redevelopment 
opportunity and it is considered that the redevelopment of this site for student accommodation 
would accord with the aspirations of the Draft Masterplan by making a positive contribution to the 
vibrancy and vitality of the George Street area by increasing the number of residents in the area 
by c374 students, as well as bringing staff and visitors to the area. 

Page 35



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

 
Interim Aberdeen Planning Guidance (APG) in relation to Student Accommodation is also 
considered to be of relevance to this application. This states that the following points must be 
considered: the development meets an identified need for the type of development proposed; it 
should be in a location that is easily accessible to higher education by sustainable transport 
modes; it should be designed to have no adverse impact on the amenity of the surrounding area; 
layout standards and facilities within developments are of a high standard and the development 
has an appropriate management plan in place. 
 
In this regard, as the applicants have scoped the market and considered that such a development 
would be beneficial for the area. Information contained within the supporting statement, which 
demonstrates that there is an overriding need for additional student accommodation options within 
the city, with circa 22,000 full time students in the city and only circa 8,500 purpose built student 
accommodation beds. The site is also easily accessible to Union Street, which in turn provides 
links to both Aberdeen University and Robert Gordon’s University. The site is also within walking 
distance of the North East Scotland College and Aberdeen University. For the reasons detailed 
elsewhere in this report, the proposals would have no adverse impact on the character and 
amenity of the surrounding area, would provide study and communal areas as well as sufficiently 
large bedrooms and other associated facilities. A draft management plan forms part of the current 
application, which is found to be acceptable. A final management plan would be controlled via a 
suspensive condition. The proposals are therefore in accordance with the Interim APG on Student 
Accommodation.  
 
Layout, Siting and Design 
 
Policy 14 (Design, quality and place) of NPF 4 states that “Development proposals will be 
designed to improve the quality of an area whether in urban or rural locations and regardless of 
scale” and “Development proposals will be supported where they are consistent with the six 
qualities of successful places: healthy, connected pleasant, distinctive, sustainable, adaptable” 
while Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “all development must 
ensure high standards of design, create sustainable and successful places”, and also reiterates 
the Scottish Government’s six qualities of a successful place 
 
In regards to the above, it is noted that a similarly sized and designed building was previously 
accepted for the site, although this permission was never implemented and has since expired. The 
proposed development proposes to utilise a number of materials, with brick for the main elevations 
along with elements of glazing and cladding and a tower feature which would sit more centrally 
within the site, aligned to the townscape of North St Andrew Street, and therefore provide an 
attractive focal point to the building when viewed from its main thoroughfares. The building has 
been designed with due consideration for its surrounding context, with the use of a variety of 
storey heights, setbacks and a tower focal feature. The Planning Service have suggested the 
insertion of a planning condition requiring large scale sample panels of each external material to 
ensure their appropriateness for the building, when viewed in context.  
 
There were concerns noted with regard to the design of the proposed parapet, and how this 
element would look in reality; the design is however a requirement of the Noise Impact 
Assessment to limit the noise of the plant and was therefore an essential part of the proposal. This 
element is therefore considered to be acceptable in this instance.  
 
The building is considered to promote healthiness, is well connected, would be distinctive in its 
design, would be sustainable and adaptable and would therefore meet the six qualities of 
successful places. There would be no conflict with either Policy D1 of the ALDP 2023 or with 
Policy 14 of NPF4.  

Page 36



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

 
Policy D2 (Amenity) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “development will be designed to: make the 
most of any opportunities offered by the site to optimise views and sunlight through appropriate 
siting, layout and orientation; ensure that occupiers are afforded adequate levels of amenity in 
relation to daylight, sunlight, noise, air quality and immediate outlook; ensure that occupiers are 
afforded adequate levels of amenity in relation to daylight, sunlight, noise, air quality and 
immediate outlook; have a public face to the street to ensure natural surveillance, and active street 
frontages; ensure that refuse and recycling facilities, cycle storage, low and zero carbon 
technology, plant and services are sensitively integrated into the design; ensure that external 
lighting minimises light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky”. 
 
In this regard, it is noted that such a large building has the potential to have an adverse impact on 
the surrounding area, in particular the residential properties which are located to the west and 
north. It is noted that the proposals would impact on the levels of daylight and sunlight receipt and 
would introduce a level of overlooking which is not currently present (given the vacant brownfield 
nature of the site). The scope of these impacts is considered to be acceptable, with appropriate 
window to window distances and setbacks between the proposed building and those found in the 
surrounding area.  
 
In addition, further information was submitted to ensure that all users of the building would receive 
acceptable levels of amenity, this including the provision of larger windows, the provision of larger 
internal communal amenity spaces and the provision of further daylight and sunlight analysis to 
ensure that the proposed courtyard area would receive appropriate levels of daylight. The 
amended and supporting information that has been submitted is considered to result in an 
acceptable level of amenity for occupants.  
 
It should also be noted that the refuse and cycle facilities would be well integrated into the site, the 
development would utilise low and zero carbon technologies (controlled via condition) and that 
external lighting has been designed to ensure no light pollution into the surrounding area. Noise 
and air quality has also been considered (and is addressed below). 
 
As a result of the above evaluation, there would be no conflict with Policy D2 (Amenity) of the 
ALDP 2023.  
 
Policy D3 (Big Buildings) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “big buildings must be of a high quality 
design which complements or improves the existing site context and that the most appropriate 
location for big buildings is within the city centre and its immediate periphery”.  
 
In this case, it is noted that the development is for the erection of an up to 7 storey building, which 
would represent a “big building” under the aforementioned policy. As discussed above, it has been 
concluded that the building has been designed with due consideration for its context, of a high 
quality design and sits on the immediate periphery of the defined city centre boundary. 
Consideration of the proposed building’s silhouette contribution to the city centre skyline, as well 
as views from key locations within the city centre, have been considered and are included within 
the supporting information and are found to be acceptable. The proposal is therefore in 
compliance with Policy D3 of the ALDP 2023.  
 
Policy D4 (Landscape) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “important views of the city’s townscape, 
landmarks and features when seen from busy or important publicly accessible vantage points such 
as roads, railways, recreation areas, and path networks and particularly from the main city 
approaches (gateways) will not be adversely affected by development.”  
 

Page 37



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

In this case, the applicants have submitted various documents and photomontages of the 
development as proposed, showing the development from a number of viewpoints including the 
key view from the Denburn Viaduct looking northwards toward the site. These documents also 
indicate that the Bastille building, which is located to the rear of the Woolmanhill flats, would still 
be visible and the proposed building would not block the views of any other significant buildings 
within the city. There would be no conflict with Policy D4 of the ALDP 2023. 
 
The site also sits adjacent to the boundary of the City Centre Conservation Area, which covers 
John Street itself and the buildings on its south side. Policy D6 (Historic Environment) of the ALDP 
2023 seeks development that “protects, preserves and enhances Aberdeen’s historic 
environment” . This is similarly echoed in Policy 7 (Historic assets and places) of NPF4. The 
proposal involves an up to seven storey student accommodation development in an area that has 
a variety of uses and architectural styles, and diversity of building heights and forms. The design 
of the building is considered to be appropriate for its context and would make a positive 
contribution to the urban streetscape in this location for the reasons detailed above and would 
therefore have no significant impact on the character of the adjacent City Centre Conservation 
Area. The proposals are therefore in line with Policy D6 of the ALDP, nor with Policy 7 of NPF4.  
 
Policy 9 (Brownfield, vacant and derelict land) of NPF4 advises that development proposals that 
will result in the sustainable reuse of brownfield land including vacant and derelict land and 
buildings, whether permanent or temporary, will be supported. Given that the proposal relates to 
such a brownfield site, which would see the construction of student accommodation on a long term 
vacant site, the proposals would comply with Policy 9 of NPF4. 
 
Policy 15 (Local Living and 20 minute neighbourhoods) of NPF 4 advises: “development proposals 
will contribute to local living including, where relevant, 20 minute neighbourhoods.” The proposal is 
in close proximity to the city centre and has ample access to amenities within a 10 minute walk of 
the application site. The amenities of the George Street area, which functions as a neighbourhood 
centre as well being part of the city centre are also located in close proximity to the site. There 
would be no conflict with Policy 15 of NPF4. 
 
Transport and Accessibility 
 
Policy T2 (Sustainable Transport) of the ALDP 2023 provides various guidance and seeks to 
“minimise traffic generation, increase accessibility, encourage public transport and provide 
relevant infrastructure” within the application site. Policy T3 (Parking) of the ALDP 2023 discusses 
matters such as parking within development and electric vehicle infrastructure. Policy 13 
(Sustainable transport) of NPF4 provides similar guidance and advises that development will be 
supported where it has been designed in association with sustainable travel, provides direct links 
to local facilities, will be accessible by public transport, provide electric vehicle charge points, 
provide safe and convenient cycle parking and consider the needs of all users, as well as mitigate 
the impact of development on local transport routes.  
 
In terms of walking, it is the site is considered to be in a highly accessible location, being a four 
minute walk from North East Scotland Colleges’ Gallowgate Campus and 23 minutes from 
Aberdeen University. In terms of cycling, it is noted that a number of dedicated cycle storage 
facilities are to be provided, the 140 spaces proposed exceed those required (128) and are 
considered to be acceptable. Implementation of such would be controlled via condition. It is 
concluded that the site is considered good for all modes of sustainable and active travel, such as 
walking, wheeling and cycling.  
 
In terms of public transport, it is noted that a bus stop sits immediately adjacent to the site and the 
site is also within walking distance of the city centre, which provides access to regular bus 

Page 38



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

services to both universities. It is also proposed to upgrade the bus stops which sit immediately 
adjacent to the site and a condition is proposed in this regard, the upgrades will be either via a 
financial contribution or physical upgrades themselves, which are to be agreed with the Public 
Transport Unit. It is concluded that the site is considered good from a public transport perspective. 
A residential travel pack would also be required as a condition of the planning permission.  
 
In terms of parking, it is noted that the proposals are for 4 parking bays, 2 disabled bays and 1 EV 
charging bay. The standard bays are to be available for staff only, with the disabled bays also 
utilised as a drop off facility at the beginning and end of term time only. The site is also within a 
controlled parking zone and any inappropriate parking would be enforced accordingly. A Vehicle 
Management Plan has also been submitted by the applicant and accepted by colleagues in Roads 
Development Management.  
 
The proposals have been reviewed by colleagues in Roads Development Management, who have 
raised no objection following the submission of amended plans. A condition has also been inserted 
to ensure that the required bus stop upgrades are completed prior to the occupation of the 
development. The proposal would accordingly be in compliance with Policy 13 of NPF4 and 
Policies T2 and T3 of the ALDP 2023. 
 
Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality 
 
Policy 22 (Flood risk and water management) of NPF 4 advises that “development proposals will: 
not increase the risk of surface water flooding to others, or itself be at risk. manage all rain and 
surface water through sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS), presume no surface water 
connection to the combined sewer; seek to minimise the area of impermeable surface, provide a 
connection to the public sewers and create, expand or enhance opportunities for natural flood risk 
management, including blue and green infrastructure”. 
 
Policy NE4 (Our Water Environment) of the ALDP 2023 advises that development will not be 
supported on sites where there would be an increased risk of flooding both within and outwith the 
site, that adequate provision should be made for the maintenance of watercourses and would not 
require the construction of new or strengthened flood defences. In addition, there is a requirement 
for a Flood Risk Assessment, foul drainage and water connection to the public sewerage system 
and that all new developments are required to incorporate Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDS) to manage surface water. 
 
In relation to the above, a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and various documents in relation to site 
drainage have been submitted in support of the planning application. Colleagues in the Flood 
Prevention Unit (FPU) and SEPA requested the submission of further information to demonstrate 
that the new development would not be at flood risk from a potential blockage of an existing 
rubbish/ debris screen at the nearby Gilcomston Burn.  
 
An updated FRA was submitted which noted that the site had a 0.1% chance of flooding, that the 
levels of the existing roads would convey any floodwater away from the site, that there was a 0.1-
0.5% chance of surface water occurring on the pre-development site and that the proposed 
surface water system would contain flows generated by a critical 200 year storm, subject to 
maintenance. Colleagues in FPU also noted that the discharge rate of the new development to the 
nearby watercourse was agreed.   
 
The above conclusions were considered to be acceptable and colleagues in the FPU raise no  
objection to the proposal, this resulted in colleagues in SEPA not requiring further consultation on 
the proposals. A condition will be inserted to ensure that the development is carried out in 

Page 39



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

accordance with the recommendations of the FRA which in turn would ensure compliance with 
Policy NE4 of the ALDP 2023 and with Policy 22 of NPF4 along with any relevant guidance.  
 
Waste Management 
 
Policy 12 (Waste) of NPF4 advises that “development proposals will seek to reduce, reuse, or 
recycle materials in line with the waste hierarchy.” Policy R5 (Waste Management Requirements 
for New Developments) of the ALDP 2023 advises “all new developments should have sufficient 
space for the storage of general waste, recyclable materials and compostable wastes where 
appropriate”. 
 
The proposals relate to a vacant site, where there would be no scope for re-use or removal of any 
materials in order to facilitate the development. The applicants have also provided an amended 
“bin store plan” which shows 12 general waste containers, 25 mixed recycling containers and 
three food waste containers. Access to such would be taken directly from John Street. The 
proposals have been subject to consultation with colleagues in Waste Management, who following 
the submission of the revised plans confirmed their acceptability, with access to the bin store 
provided directly from John Street. The proposal is therefore considered to have provided 
sufficient space for the storage of waste facilities, which in turn would ensure compliance with 
Policy 12 (Waste) of NPF4, Policy R5 (Waste Management Requirements for New Development) 
of the ALDP 2023 and with its associated Interim Aberdeen Planning Guidance: Resources for 
New Development.  
 
Developer Obligations 
 
Policy I1 (Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations) of the ALDP 2023 advises that in order 
to “create sustainable communities, development must be supported by the required 
infrastructure, services and facilities to deliver the scale and type of developments proposed.” In 
this regard, the proposal has been subject to consultation with colleagues in Developer 
Obligations, who have advised that contributions are required toward healthcare facilities 
(£132,595) and open space provision (£42,053). The applicants have agreed to these 
contributions, payment of which would be subject to a legal agreement. The provision of such 
would ensure compliance with Policy I1 of the ALDP 2023 and its associated guidance: Planning 
Obligations.  
 
Air Quality 
 
Policy WB2 (Air Quality) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “development proposals which may have 
a detrimental impact on air quality will not be permitted unless measures to mitigate the impact of 
air pollutants are proposed and agreed with the Planning Authority”. 
 
In terms of air quality, the proposals have been assessed by colleagues in Environmental Health, 
who noted that the site is located approximately 500 metres to the west of the nearest Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA) on East North Street, and consider that there would be no adverse 
impact as a result of the development. The response also considered vehicle movements 
associated with the proposal, and also noted that due to the nature of development proposed 
there would also be no adverse impact on air quality.  
 
In addition, it is noted that occupants of the surrounding residential properties could be exposed to 
dust during each phase of works. Colleagues in Environmental Health have therefore requested 
the submission of an Air Quality Dust Risk Assessment and Dust Management Plan. Both of these 
could be controlled via an appropriately worded planning condition. Subject to this, there would be 

Page 40



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

no conflict with Policy WB2: Air Quality of the ALDP 2023 or its associated Interim Aberdeen 
Planning Guidance: Air Quality. 
 
Noise 
 
Policy WB3 (Noise) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “in cases where significant exposure to noise is 
likely to arise from development, a Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) will be required as part of a 
planning application.” 
 
In terms of noise, an Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) was submitted in support of the proposals, 
which has also been assessed by colleagues in Environmental Health. They have accepted the 
report and the proposed development, provided the noise mitigation measures proposed are 
installed, which include glazing and trickle ventilators, a 3 metre high parapet wall, a restriction on 
the number of Air Source Heat Pumps and the installation of sound absorbing materials. 
Compliance with the NIA will be controlled via an appropriately worded planning condition, which 
would ensure compliance with Policy WB3: Noise of the ALDP 2023 and its associated IAPG: 
Noise. An informative will also be added in relation to the hours of construction.  
 
Contaminated Land 
 
Policy R2 (Degraded and Contaminated Land) of the ALDP 2023  requires that all land that is 
degraded or contaminated, including visually, is either restored, reclaimed or remediated to a level 
suitable for its proposed use. In this case, the applicants submitted a Desk Study Report that 
recommended that a full geo-environmental assessment be carried out, road and pavement 
designs should be considered and testing for the water mains should be carried out. This can be 
controlled as a condition of the planning permission. They also requested that further assessment 
of this aspect be included within the geo-environmental assessment. Subject to this, the proposal 
would be in compliance with Policy R2 of the ALDP 2023.  
 
Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises, Climate mitigation and Biodiversity 
 
Policy 1 (Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises) of NPF4  requires significant weight to be given 
to the global climate and nature crises in the consideration of all development proposals. Policy 2 
(Climate mitigation and adaptation) of NPF4 requires development proposals to be designed and 
sited to minimise lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions as far as possible, and to adapt to current 
and future risks from climate change. Policy 3 (Biodiversity) of NPF4 requires proposals for local 
development to include measures to conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity, proportionate to 
the nature and scale of development. 
 
The proposed development, which relates the redevelopment of a city centre brownfield site would 
ensure that the site and the wider area are more sustainable in meeting local needs, occupants 
are able to utilise local transport routes and the building would be subject to the highest 
sustainability standards to ensure compliance with Policies 1 and 2 of NPF4. The proposed 
development is small-scale to a certain extent and although it does not offer the opportunity for 
meaningful biodiversity gain, areas within the site are to be planted with hedges and a small 
number of trees are to be planted throughout the development and the proposals are considered 
to be acceptable and in line with Policy 3 of NPF4. 
 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
 
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency) of the ALDP 2023 requires all 
new buildings to meet at least 20% of the building regulations carbon dioxide emissions reduction 
target applicable at the time of the application through the installation of low and zero carbon 

Page 41



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

generating technology in accordance with the associated supplementary guidance. The policy also 
requires all new buildings to use water saving technologies and techniques. Conditions can be 
attached requiring details to be submitted demonstrating that the buildings would comply with 
these requirements. 
 
Digital Infrastructure 
 
Policy CI1 (Digital Infrastructure) of the ALDP 2023 advises that “all new commercial development 
and residential development where five or more units are proposed will be expected to have 
access to high-speed communications infrastructure.” Whereas Policy 24 (Digital Infrastructure) of 
NPF4 advises that: “development proposals that incorporate appropriate, universal, and future-
proofed digital infrastructure will be supported.” 
 
The site within an urban area adjacent to the city centre boundary, and a check of the OFCOM 
website confirms that the area has access to standard, superfast and ultrafast broadband. A 
condition would also be added to the consent to ensure that the student accommodation is 
provided access to these facilities. Subject to the above the proposals would comply with Policy 
CI1 of the ALDP 2023 and Policy 24 of NPF4. 
 
Matters Raised in Representations  
 
One representation was generally content with the proposed development but requested a change 
to the northern boundary to remove the proposed timber fence and replace it with a brick wall or 
similar and a height of 1.8m. Response: the boundary treatments, as proposed (being timber 
fencing), are considered to be acceptable, and a brick wall is not seen an essential requirement. 

 
A further representation raised concerns regarding the height of the building, and the potential for 
overshadowing properties in the surrounding area. This submission also disagreed with the 
applicant’s comment that the proposals would be a legible “marker” when viewed from distance 
along Denburn Road. Response: the height of the building, along with the impact on neighbouring 
properties has been discussed elsewhere in this report. The design and scale of the building is 
considered to be appropriate in this instance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Conditionally & Subject to Legal Agreement 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed building has been designed with due consideration for its context and would have 
no adverse impact on the character or amenity of the surrounding area, being of an appropriate 
size scale and design, with the proposed use as student accommodation considered to be 
acceptable within this mixed use setting. All relevant technical considerations have been resolved, 
or can be controlled via appropriately worded planning conditions. The proposal is therefore in 
accordance with Policies 1: Tacking the climate and nature crises, 2: Climate mitigation and 
adaptation, 3: Biodiversity, 7: Historic assets and places, 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land 
and empty buildings, 12: Zero waste, 13: Sustainable transport, 14: Design, quality and place, 15: 
Local living and 20-minute neighbourhoods, 16: Quality homes, 22: Flood risk and water 
management, 24: Digital infrastructure of National Planning Framework 4 and with Policies WB2: 
Air Quality, WB3: Noise. NE4: Our Water Environment, D1: Quality Placemaking, D2: Amenity, 
D3: Big Buildings, D4: Landscape, D6: Historic Environment, R2: Degraded and Contaminated 
Land, R5: Waste Management Requirements for New Development, R6: Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings, and Water Efficiency, H2: Mixed Use Areas, H7: Student Accommodation 

Page 42



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

Developments,  I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations, T2: Sustainable Transport, 
T3: Parking and CI1: Digital Infrastructure of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 (01) DURATION OF PERMISSION 
 
The development to which this notice relates must be begun not later than the expiration of 3 
years beginning with the date of this notice. If development has not begun at the expiration of the 
3-year period, the planning permission lapses. 
 
Reason - in accordance with section 58 (duration of planning permission) of the 1997 act. 
 
(02) MATERIALS 
 
That no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external finishing materials to 
the roof and walls of the development hereby approved, including large scale sample boards of 
the proposed brick and all elements cladding and window detailing, along with further details of the 
design features to both the bin store and office building at ground floor level has been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by the planning authority and thereafter the development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the details so agreed. 
 
Reason - in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(03) PARKING/ CYCLE PARKING AND BIN STORAGE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED 
PLANS 
 
That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the car parking, cycle parking 
and bin storage areas hereby granted planning permission have been constructed, drained, laid-
out and demarcated in accordance with drawing No. 12483-HFM-B1-XX-DR-A-02 010 P02 and 
12483-HFM-B1-XX-DR-A-02 051 P03  of the plans hereby approved or such other drawing as 
may subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority. Such areas 
shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the purpose of the parking of cars 
ancillary to the development and use thereby granted approval. 
 
Reason - in the interests of public safety and the free flow of traffic and to ensure that the site is 
adequately serviced. 
 
(04) AIR QUALITY DUST RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
That no development shall take place (including site stripping or service provision) unless an Air 
Quality (Dust) Risk Assessment for the construction phase of development has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Such risk assessment shall be carried out by a 
suitably qualified consultant in accordance with the Institute of Air Quality Management document 
“Guidance on the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction 2014”. Thereafter 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plan.  
 
Reason: in order to control air pollution from dust associated with the development in accordance 
with Policy WB2: Air Quality of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023. 
 
(05) DUST MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

Page 43



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

That no development (including site stripping or service provision) shall take place unless a Dust 
Management Plan for the construction phase of development has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the planning authority. Such management plan shall specify dust mitigation measures 
and controls, responsibilities, and any proposed monitoring regime. Thereafter development 
(including demolition) shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plan.  
 
Reason - In order to control air pollution from dust associated with the construction of the 
development in accordance with Policy WB2: Air Quality of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
2023. 
 
(06) NOISE IMPACT ASSESSMENT COMPLIANCE 
 
That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the noise mitigation 
measures have been installed in accordance with the conclusions and recommendations set out in 
the approved Noise Impact Assessment (Sandy Brown Limited (Reference: 23119-R01-B, Version 

B Date: 28 Apr 23) and evidence of this installation has been provided to, and agreed in writing by, 
the Planning Authority. For avoidance of doubt this should include the following: 
 

a) Section 7.1, table 6 and associated figure 7 regarding glazing and trickle ventilators. 
b) Section 7.3.1 regarding provision of the rooftop 3 metre high parapet wall. 
c) Section 7.3.1 regarding the number of Air Source Heat Pumps limited to 6 units. 
d) Section 7.3.3 and Compliance with the octave band centre frequency data for plant (super 

Low Noise Unit) WSAN-YSC4 EN, Lw (dB)contained within table 7, lining of parapet with a 
suitable sound absorbing material and noise levels from any ventilation louvres grilles etc 
associated with the proposed heating plant room should not exceed NR 50 at 3 m distance. 

 
Once installed the mitigation measures shall be retained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: in the interests of amenity and to ensure compliance with Policy WB3: Noise of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2023. 
 
(07) FULL FIBRE BROADBAND 
 
That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme for the provision of 
a full fibre broadband connection to the building has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the planning authority. Thereafter the scheme shall be implemented as approved and all rooms 
within the student accommodation provided with a full fibre broadband connection. 
 
Reason – in order to provide all flats with access to high-speed communications infrastructure, in 
accordance with the requirements of Policy CI1 (Digital Infrastructure) of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan 2023 and Policy 24 (Digital infrastructure) of National Planning Framework 4.  
 
(08) LOW AND ZERO CARBON 
 
No development shall take place unless a scheme detailing compliance with the Council's 
Resources for New Development Guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. Thereafter no units shall be occupied unless the recommended measures 
specified within that scheme for that unit for the reduction of carbon emissions have been 
implemented in full.  
 
Reason - to ensure that the development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon 
emissions specified in the City Council's relevant published Interim Planning Advice: Resources 
for New Development. 

Page 44



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

 
(09) FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT COMPLIANCE 
 
That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless carried out in full accordance 
with the conclusions and recommendations set out in the approved Flood Risk Assessment 
(Fairhurst Reference: 152031 - FRA 02 ISS 03 Date 2nd June 2023) and evidence of this 
compliance has been provided to, and agreed in writing by, the Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: to ensure that the site can be adequately drained and to ensure that the site is not 
susceptible to flooding.  
 
(10) GREEN TRAVEL PLAN 
 
That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless there has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority a detailed Green Transport Plan, which outlines 
sustainable measures to deter the use of the private car, in particular single occupant trips and 
provides detailed monitoring arrangements, modal split targets and associated penalties for not 
meeting targets. 
 
Reason - in order to encourage more sustainable forms of travel to the development. 
 
(11) STUDENT MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
That prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved, a student management plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the use shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the details so approved and shall be so maintained. The 
management plan shall include details on health and safety standards and procedures; 
maintenance and repairs; environmental quality; landlord and tenant relationship; student welfare; 
anti-social behaviour and disciplinary procedures; and administration and compliance procedures. 
 
Reason - To ensure a satisfactory standard of accommodation is provided and in the interests of 
the amenity of the area. 
 
(12) GEO ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a Geo-Environmental 
Assessment, which follows the conclusions and recommendations of the submitted Desk Top 
Survey (Ref:  152031 01), shall be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority. For 
avoidance of doubt, the survey shall also include an assessment on human health risks.  
 
Reasons – to ensure that the site remains suitable for human occupation.  
 
(13) BUS STOP UPGRADES 
 
That prior to the occupation of the student accommodation hereby approved, details of bus stop 
upgrades to the existing facilities on John Street shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. Prior to the discharge of this condition, confirmation shall be sought from 
the Council’s Public Transportation Unit that such upgrades are acceptable, or are not required. 
Thereafter the agreed works shall be implemented in accordance with an approved scheme and 
implemented prior to occupation.  
 
Reason: to ensure that the development would have access to more sustainable modes of 
transportation. 

Page 45



Application Reference: 230514/DPP 
 

 

 
ADVISORY NOTES FOR APPLICANT 
 

1. In order to protect amenity of the occupants of the neighbouring residences from noise 
produced as a result of demolition, site/ground preparation works and construction works  
operations creating noise which is audible at the site boundary should not occur outside the 
hours of 07:00 to 19:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. No works shall 
be undertaken on a Sunday.  

 
2. The developer should liaise with the Police Scotland Architectural Liaison Officer service at 

each stage of development, for the purpose of designing out crime using the principles of 
Crime Prevention through Environmental Design (CEPTED).  
 

3. The applicant should could “Secured by Design” awards and Police Scotland have 
recommended that the development should achieve the Police SBD award.  

 
 

Page 46


	Agenda
	1.1 Motion Against Officer Recommendation - Procedural Note
	4.1 Referral from Full Council - Energy Transition Zone
	5.1 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 24 August 2023 - for approval
	6.1 Committee Planner
	7.1 Detailed Planning Permission for the erection of student accommodation (circa 383 beds) with associated infrastructure and landscaping - 92-126 Jon Street Aberdeen

